
 
MEASURE M 

COC/TOC AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
Tuesday, April 13, 2010 

5:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 
 

 Orange County Transportation Authority 
600 S. Main Street, Orange, CA 

Conference Room 506 
 

Conference room is directly in front of the elevator on the 5th floor.   
 

 
1. Review and approve minutes from February 9, 2010 
 
2. Quarterly Measure M Revenue and Expenditure Report 
 
3. OCTA Internal Audit Peer Review Report 

 
4. Revised Stanton CTFP Report 

 
5. Update on City Selection for Audits of Measure M 

Turnback 
 

6. Measure M2 Triennial Assessment Kick-Off 
 

 
 

 
Kenneth Phipps

Kathleen O’Connell

Janet Sutter

Janet Sutter

Alice Rogan

7. Other Matters 
 
8. Public Comments*  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Agenda listings are intended to give notice to members of the public of items of business to be 
transacted or discussed.  The Audit Subcommittee may take any action which it deems appropriate on an 
agenda item. 
 
*Public Comments:  At this time, members of the public may address the Audit Subcommittee regarding 
any items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Subcommittee provided that NO action may be 
taken off-agenda items unless authorized by law.  Comments shall be limited to five (5) minutes per 
person and 20 minutes for all comments, unless different time limits are set by the Chairman, subject to 
the approval of the Subcommittee. 



MEASURE M 
COC/TOC AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 

Minutes 
 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 S. Main Street, 600 Building 

Orange, CA 
Conference Room 506 

Tuesday, February 9, 2010 
5:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 

 
 
• COC/TOC members present:  Hamid Bahadori, Howard Mirowitz, Jim Kelly, Gregory 

Pate, David Sundstrom 
 
• OCTA staff present: Alice Rogan, Andrew Oftelie, Ken Phipps, Janet Sutter, 

Kathleen O’Connell 
 
Meeting was called to order at:  5:08pm. 
 
Review and approve minutes from January 26, 2010:   Minutes from the January 
meeting were approved. 
 
Proposed Measure M1 Freeway Program Amendment:  Andrew Oftelie, Manager of 
Financial Planning and Analysis, apprised the committee of the proposed amendment to 
the Measure M1 (M1) Freeway Mode to address lower-than-projected sales tax 
revenues. Part of the amendment process requires OCTA’s Board of Directors (Board) to 
set a date for the public hearing which has been designated for March 8, 2010. Approval 
from the full Taxpayers Oversight Committee (TOC) is also required and will be solicited 
at this evening’s meeting. Andrew provided copies of the current Revised Traffic 
Improvement and Growth Management Expenditure Plan that was last amended in 
September 2007. The second page of the plan shows the new version, with the first line 
item being the I-5 project which had a cost increase of $16 million, and the fifth line item 
being the SR-57 project, which had a cost decrease of $16 million. Andrew said that 
$22 million was being moved, but after funds are deescalated to 1988 dollars, total funds 
moved is actually $16 million. The expenditure plan represents the proposed 
amendment as directed by the TOC Audit Subcommittee (Subcommittee), and which will 
be presented to the Board for approval at the public hearing on March 8, 2010.  
 
Hamid Bahadori wanted to clarify that this would not affect the SR-57 project because 
stimulus funds would be funding that project. Andrew explained that the $22 million 
would come from Measure M2 (M2) funds and would be started with commercial paper. 
Specifically, the SR-57 project is going to be funded primarily with Prop 1B funds, but 
since that program is currently on hold, commercial paper will be used for early 
engineering work.  Originally, commercial paper was to be used for the SR-91 project, 
but OCTA received stimulus funds for that project which freed up state bond funds which 
could be applied to the SR-57 project. Jim Kelly asked why 1988 dollar values are used 



for the report. Andrew and Alice Rogan, Community Relations Officer, both explained the 
plan has always been prepared with 1988 dollar values in reference to page 18 of the 
Ordinance, which is what the voters approved. 
 
Follow-up to Annual Audit Report Questions:  Kathleen O’Connell, Executive Director of 
Internal Audit, provided a compilation of responses to questions that arose during the 
review of the Local Transportation Authority’s (LTA) audited financial statements at the 
January meeting, and reviewed the responses with Subcommittee members.  
 
CTFP Project Audit Follow-up for Cities of Stanton and Westminster:  Kathleen 
updated the Subcommittee regarding status of the CTFP Project follow-up audits for the 
cities of Stanton and Westminster, both of which did not have adequate supporting 
documentation for expenditures. The City of Westminster did not have detailed timesheets 
to support charges to the project, but they did have a time summary of all the labor 
charges.  Both of these items were presented to the Finance and Administration (F&A) 
Committee and the Board.  The F&A Committee opined that they would accept the time 
summary as support for the expenditures as opposed to the detailed timesheets. The City 
of Stanton had no records to support $84,000 of charges for their CTFP projects.  However, 
the evening before this item was brought before the F&A Committee, the City of Stanon 
was able to produce the documents. The F&A Committee directed that those documents 
be reviewed and that a revised report be issued. The review has been completed and a 
revised report will be issued accepting the documentation from the City of Stanton. 
 
Review of Audit Findings:  David Sundstrom, TOC Chairman, conveyed his belief that 
nothing has surfaced at the committee level or off-line that would lead him to believe that 
compliance issues are in existence. David believes the annual audit reports show a high 
level of compliance and made a motion to find OCTA in compliance with the spirit of 
Measure M as approved by the voters. This motion was seconded and passed 
unanimously.  
 
Proposed Meeting Stipend for TOC Members:  David indicated the Grand Jury of 
Orange County recommends a modest stipend of $50 be paid to TOC members to entice 
better qualified applicants during the recruitment process for new TOC members. A 
discussion then ensued regarding this recommendation. Alice indicated there would be no 
recommendations for approval of a stipend at this time pending research of the legal 
ramifications of implementing a stipend for TOC members. Ultimately, OCTA’s Board will 
decide whether or not to implement a stipend for TOC members. 
 
Status of Selection of Triennial Performance Auditors:  Alice, who was on the selection 
panel for the M2 triennial performance assessment, offered to apprise Subcommittee 
members on the status of the selection of a consultant on behalf of Howard Mirowitz.  Alice 
indicated three proposals had been submitted, but only two firms, the Orange County 
Business Council (OCBC) and Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc. (Sjoberg), were chosen 
for interview. Andrew was not part of the selection panel to avoid a conflict of interest with 
OCBC, whose CEO is Stan Oftelie. After discussing both firms’ qualifications, the panel 
determined the ordinance called for an assessment and not an audit, and therefore chose 
OCBC to conduct the triennial performance assessment believing OCBC to be stronger in 
assessment abilities than Sjoberg. Hamid Bahadori asked Andrew if he would be the 
project manager for the assessment. Andrew replied the project manager would most likely 



be Kia Mortazavi, Executive Director of Development, however, that has yet to be 
determined.  
 
David asked if he was alone in believing the selection of OCBC might be seen as a conflict 
of interest in that the OCBC promoted Measure M2. Stan Oftelie, OCBC’s CEO, is a former 
CEO of OCTA and also the ‘father’ of Measure M. Alice replied that the selection panel 
debated this issue and determined that OCBC has a vested interest in the community of 
Orange County to ensure delivery of what was promised to voters in large part because of 
their participation in promoting Measure M2. Failure of OCTA to deliver Measure M2 
reflects badly on OCBC. Alice also conveyed that the OCBC had performed a very 
objective review of the delivery of Measure M1 at the 15-year mark of Measure M, which 
demonstrates non-bias. The selection panel also determined an assessment of Measure M 
is in order now and an audit in the next three years.  Hamid expressed disagreement and 
stated now is the best time for a performance audit in order to be pro-active as opposed to 
re-active. Alice agreed, implying this argument steered the panel in the direction of an 
assessment, which would examine controls, and look not only at the past, but also make 
suggestions for the future. 
 
Jim Kelly asked what the original budget for the performance assessment was. Andrew 
replied $75,000, which is half the cost of the Transportation Development Act (TDA) audits. 
Andrew conveyed the performance assessment will be half as big as the TDA audit, and 
thus $75,000 was determined to be the working budget for the performance assessment. 
Jim then asked how many projects are on the early action plan for Measure M2. Andrew 
responded there were nine, with five freeway projects. At this time, only the SR-91 project 
is underway. Hamid asked to make a suggestion to the Subcommittee, which is to bring 
OCBC early on to the TOC to present the scope of work and their approach and hear 
feedback. 
 
David again reiterated being uncomfortable with the selection of OCBC to perform the 
triennial performance assessment, explaining that whether or not a conflict exists, there is 
the appearance of a conflict of interest. David understands the selection panel 
distinguished the need for an assessment review as opposed to a performance audit which 
is fair, but the panel has chosen to turn down the offer of Sjoberg who at the very least co-
authored the book on performance auditing in the United States. The selection panel has 
turned down the past state auditor for the State of California who ran a very heavy 
performance audit shop in California before the legislature cut their expenses by 40 
percent. David stressed that Sjoberg is very good, he knows them very well, he knows 
them personally, he knows their work, and it’s difficult for him to accept that OCBC, who 
has a great interest in succeeding, doesn’t have the credentials that Sjoberg has. David 
again stated that even though there might not be a conflict, a rational, reasonable person or 
an OC Register reporter might see a conflict of interest. 
 
Howard Mirowitz, TOC Audit Subcommittee member who was also on the selection panel, 
defended the panel’s selection by stating that Andrew Oftelie recused himself from the 
selection panel, and that the panel also examined the Ordinance and determined the 
Ordinance does not specifically use the word audit. The panel also considered M2 to be in 
its infancy, and an audit might not be appropriate at this time. David again argued that a 
performance auditor such as Sjoberg understands systems and controls and would be able 
to make valuable contributions to the assessment.  Hamid echoed his agreement with 



David, indicating a performance audit would examine the structure and identify pitfalls and 
flaws in the system and offer recommendations for improvement.  
 
Alice added another issue that was discussed at the selection meeting was that the person 
from Sjoberg who would be assigned the most hours on this project was also working a 
project in Nevada. In total, this person would be working 80 hour weeks. When the panel 
asked Sjoberg about the amount of hours this person would be working, Sjoberg 
responded they are used to working 80 hour weeks. Howard noted that both firms had 
assigned comparable hours and levels of effort. David then presumed that Sjoberg’s 
proposal must not have been very good. Howard replied one of the issues with Sjoberg is 
they didn’t have a good answer when asked how they could propose so much work before 
proposing a work plan. Howard indicated Sjoberg’s approach is to collect information 
initially, then return at a later time to determine where efforts would be focused.  
 
Hamid suggested the Subcommittee watch this project very carefully and become actively 
involved early on with the assessment. Jim Kelly asked what the potential conflict of interest 
is with Andrew Oftelie. David answered the appearance of a conflict lies with Stan Oftelie 
who is past chairman of OCTA, past chairman of OCBC, and was a chief designer of 
Measure M.  
 
Quarterly Measure M Revenue and Expenditure Report:  Kenneth Phipps, Executive 
Director of Finance and Administration, said the major message is revenues are still soft.  
The December 2009 quarterly report shows sales tax revenues at $99 million, compared to 
$119 million at the end of December 2008. Ken stated the only positive news he has for the 
Subcommittee is the rate of decline for the quarter ending December 2009 was less than 
the prior quarter. The Metrolink Service Expansion Plan had the most activity for the quarter 
ending December 2009, as well as the I-5 Gateway in the Freeway Mode. 
 
Other Matters:  None  
 
Public Comments:   None 
 
Meeting Adjourned at:   6:00 p.m. 
 
Next meeting scheduled for April 13, 2010, 5:00 p.m. CR 506. 






































































	Agenda for 04.13.10
	AGENDA
	Tuesday, April 13, 2010
	600 S. Main Street, Orange, CA

	Minutes from 02-09-10
	Document1
	Document2

